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REQUEST FOR PRE-QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS FOR THE NEW WATER 
QUALITY LABORATORY, PROJECT NO. EN15008 
 
Notice is hereby given that Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA/Agency) has determined that all 
bidders for the construction of the New Water Quality Laboratory, Project No. EN15008, to be 
undertaken by the Agency must be pre-qualified prior to submitting a bid on this project.  It is 
mandatory that all contractors who intend to submit a bid, fully complete the pre-qualification 
questionnaire, provide all materials requested herein, and be approved by IEUA to be on the final 
qualified Bidder’s list.  No bid will be accepted from a contractor that has failed to comply with 
these requirements.  If interested parties are in a joint venture, the questionnaire needs to be filled by 
both parties in its entirety.  The prime contractor for this project shall possess a valid Contractor’s 
License issued by the State of California with an A Classification. 
 
The last date to submit a fully-completed questionnaire is January 11, 2016 at 2:00 PM.   
Contractors are encouraged to submit pre-qualification packages as soon as possible, so that they 
may be notified of omissions of information to be remedied or of their pre-qualification status well 
in advance of the pre-qualification deadline. 
 
IEUA will use the completed questionnaires as the basis of qualifying contractors for the Project.  
IEUA reserves the right to check other available sources.  A committee will review and analyze the 
information and make a recommendation on the selections.  
   
While it is the intent of the pre-qualification questionnaire and documents required therewith to 
assist IEUA in determining bidder responsibility prior to bid and to aid the Agency in selecting the 
lowest responsible bidder, neither the fact of pre-qualification, nor any pre-qualification rating, will 
preclude IEUA from a post-bid consideration and determination of whether a bidder has the quality, 
fitness, capacity and experience to satisfactorily perform the proposed work, and has demonstrated 
the requisite trustworthiness.  
 
The pre-qualification packages must be submitted under seal and marked “CONFIDENTIAL” to: 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Attention:  Jamal Zughbi, Project Manager 
6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A 
Chino, CA 91708 
 

All contractors shall submit (8) hard copies of the pre-qualification package. Additionally, the 
Contractor must also submit an electronic copy (PDF) of the pre-qualification package on a CD or 
USB memory stick. 
 
Each questionnaire must be signed under penalty of perjury in the manner designated at the end of 
the form, by an individual who has the legal authority to bind the contractor on whose behalf that 
person is signing.   
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IEUA reserves the right to waive minor irregularities and omissions in the information contained in 
the pre-qualification application submitted and to make all final determinations.  
 
Contractors may submit a complete pre-qualification package during regular IEUA working hours, 
Monday through Thursday from 8 AM – 5PM. Contractors who submit a complete pre-qualification 
package will be notified electronically of their qualification status on or before February 9, 2016. 
 
The pre-qualification packages will be evaluated by an IEUA committee.  Numeric scores will not 
be provided for each of the categories, but will be a pass/fail for each of the categories. For a 
contractor to be deemed as pre-qualified, all categories must receive a pass by consensus by the 
IEUA committee. IEUA committee may conduct interviews of selected or all prospective 
contractors to make the final determination of pre-qualified for the project. 
 
IEUA may refuse to grant pre-qualification approval when the requested information and materials 
are not provided by the deadline. There is no appeal for a refusal for an incomplete or late 
application, but re-application for a future project pre-qualification is permitted. The closing time 
for bids will not be changed in order to accommodate supplementation of incomplete submissions, 
or late submissions. 
 
Where a timely and completed application results in a rating below that necessary to pre-qualify, the 
decision may be appealed. An appeal is begun by the contractor delivering notice to IEUA of its 
appeal of the decision with respect to its pre-qualification rating, no later than five business days 
from IEUA’s notification of the qualification status. Without a timely appeal, the contractor waives 
any and all rights to challenge the decision of IEUA, whether by administrative process, judicial 
process or any other legal process or proceeding. 
 
If the contractor gives the required written notice of appeal and requests a hearing, the hearing shall 
be conducted so that it is concluded no later than five business days after IEUA’s receipt of the 
written notice of appeal, and no later than five business days prior to the last date for the receipt of 
bids on the project. The hearing shall be an informal process conducted by a panel to which the 
IEUA has delegated responsibility to hear such appeals (the “Appeals Panel”).  At or prior to the 
hearing, the contractor will be advised of the basis for IEUA’s pre-qualification determination. The 
contractor will be given the opportunity to present information and present reasons in opposition to 
the decision.  Within one business day after the conclusion of the hearing, the Appeals Panel will 
render its decision in writing to the contractor.  The contractor may choose to appeal the decision of 
the “Appeals Panel” with the IEUA Board of Directors at the next scheduled IEUA Board Meeting. 
The closing time for bids will not be changed in order to accommodate the second appeal process. 
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DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 
IEUA is seeking to prequalify construction contractors that are qualified to construct the New Water 
Quality Laboratory including an expansion of a Central Chiller Plant.  The project is expected to be 
bid for construction in February 2016, with expected construction contract award in May 2016 with 
an anticipated construction duration of two to three years.  
 
Pre-qualification questionnaire with all supporting documents are due on January 11, 2016.  If 
interested parties are in a joint venture, the questionnaire needs to be filled by both parties in its 
entirety and the prime contractor identified clearly. 
   
Scope of Work:  
 
This is a grant and State Revolving Fund loan project.  The Contractor shall be responsible to 
comply with all grant and loan requirements related to the project. (Refer to Attachment B for 
instructions.) 
 
This project consists of all materials, labor, tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, transportation and 
incidentals necessary to furnish, deliver and install The New Water Quality Laboratory & Central 
Chiller Plant Expansion specified in the Contract Documents.  
 
The New Water Quality Laboratory is a single-story, steel-framed, fully-sprinklered structure and 
designed in accordance with the Silver Rating requirements of Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design (L.E.E.D). The New Water Quality Laboratory will be built on the IEUA 
Headquarters campus behind Building B. The gross floor area is 16,747 square feet. The building 
occupancy is a ‘B’ occupancy—no hazardous occupancies involved. The building construction type 
is Type V-B. 
 
The New Water Quality Laboratory building will be equipped with the state-of-the-art heating, 
ventilation and air conditioning system along with all necessary modern lab equipment, mechanical 
and electrical rooms, controls, sampling and storage, etc. Water and wastewater analytical 
equipment and devices will be provided by the Agency. 
 
The Central Chiller Plant Expansion includes the supply and installation of additional chiller, 
cooling tower, pumps, piping and upgrade of electrical, control and communication system to 
accommodate the additional capacity required by the new laboratory. The Central Plant currently 
supplies heating and chilled water to the Headquarters Building A & B 
 
Site address is: 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency  
6075 Kimball Avenue, Chino, CA 91708. 
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Pre-Qualification Selection Criteria: 
 
The basis, by which a contractor is selected as Pre-Qualified for the project, will be based on the 
questionnaire submitted for the Project, and the following criteria: 
 
(1) Contractor's Statement of Experience – The Contractor needs to provide sufficient details in 

the Pre-Qualification questionnaire to demonstrate completion of water quality laboratory 
projects of a similar size and complexity within the last seven (7) years. 

 
(2) Contractor’s work quality, workmanship, contract management, and conflict resolutions as 

demonstrated by the references that the Agency will verify for past projects completed over 
the last seven (7) years. 

 
(3) Contractor’s Project Management Approach and Project Schedule for similar laboratory 

projects. 
 
(4) Appropriate Valid California Class A Contractor's License. 
 
(5) Contractor's Financial Statement and Bondability. 
 
(6) Contractor must engage an experienced LEED-Accredited Professional to coordinate LEED 

requirements. Contractor LEED experience is preferred by the Agency. The contractor must 
demonstrate project history consisting of completed projects which have received LEED 
certification. 

 
(7) The Contractor must be familiar with projects that have been financed by State grant loans 

and the associated requirements, including but not limited to prevailing wages and the Buy-
American requirements. (Refer to Attachment B for instructions). 

 
(8) Qualified subcontractors are an important part of the construction process. The contractor 

shall list preferred subcontractors that may be solicited in the construction of the New Water 
Quality Laboratory. Subcontractors must have experience in their area of construction such 
as new lab construction and commissioning, central chiller plant construction and 
commissioning, HVAC, etc.  

 
(9)  The Contractor must be familiar and compliant with labor laws as set forth by the California 

Department of Industrial Relations. 
 
(10) The Contractor must provide a liability insurance policy with a policy limit of at least 

$3,000,000 per occurrence and $6,000,000 aggregate. 
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(11) The Contractor must provide a current workers’ compensation insurance policy.  
 
(12)  The Contractor must attach the latest copy of a reviewed or audited financial statement with 

accompanying notes and supplemental information.  
 
(13) The Contractor must attach a notarized statement from an admitted surety insurer (approved 

by the California Department of Insurance) and authorized to issue bonds in the State of 
California, which states that your current bonding capacity is sufficient for the project for 
which you seek pre-qualification. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Balance of this Page Intentionally Left Blank)
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BUSINESS INFORMATION 
 
Firm Name:       Check One:   Corporation 

        (as it appears on license)      Partnership 
          Sole Proprietary 

  Other___________________ 
 

Contact Person:            
 
Address:             
 
Phone:       Fax:       
 
Email:        
 
If firm is a sole proprietor or partnership:  
 
Owner(s) of Company          
 
 
(1) List all California construction license numbers, classifications and expiration dates of  the 

California contractor licenses held by your firm, and associated firm name: 
 

              
   

             
 
             

 
(2) If any of your firm’s license(s) are held in the name of a corporation or partnership, list 

below the names of the qualifying individual(s) listed on the Contractor State License Board 
records who meet(s) the experience and examination requirements for each license.  
 
             

 
             
 
             
 

(3) If firm is a corporation; 
 
Date incorporated:    in the State of       
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(4) Proposed Project Manager for the New Water Quality Laboratory Project:  
 
___________________________________________________________________  
    
Proposed Superintendent for the New Water Quality Laboratory Project:   
 
__________________________________________________________________  
   
  
 
 Attach resumes for superintendent and construction manager  

 
 Provide a sample P6 schedule for similar laboratory projects. 

 
 

Submit Preliminary Critical Path Schedule for Pre-Qualification: 
 

Submit in accordance with this solicitation for pre-qualification a preliminary Critical 
Path Method (CPM) project schedule to demonstrate a preliminary Critical Path 
Schedule, using Primavera 6.0 V7 or greater, defining Respondents anticipated sequence 
of construction for the Scope of Work. Respondent shall submit (1) electronic file copy 
(.xer format) for Agency review and evaluation. 
 
Standards for Preparation & Evaluation: 
 
The Preliminary Schedule shall be in accordance with applicable Industry Standards of 
Care and Practice, including but not limited to; American Association of Cost Engineers 
International Professional Practice Guide for Planning and Scheduling, Third Edition; 
Construction Management Association of America Standards of Practice, 2015 and The 
Project Management Institutes, Project Management Body of Knowledge. 
 
Evaluation Criteria: 
 

Preliminary Critical Path Schedule 
Work Breakdown Structure 

Activity Work Sequence 

Activity Relationship Use & Definition 

Appropriate Use of Constraints 

Critical Path Definition & Integrity 
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 Provide a written project management approach for construction of the New Water 
Quality Laboratory and Central Plant or similar projects, as an attachment.  Based on 
the project description, outline the task, any special approaches and the plans for 
completion.  Include a description of the roles and responsibilities of the proposer’s 
Project Team members and how the team will work together to achieve the objectives 
of the project.  Innovation and alternatives to the proposed project scope are welcome. 

 
(5) Provide all the following information for each person who is either (a) an officer of the 

corporation (e.g., president, vice president, secretary, treasurer, etc.), or (b) the owner of at 
least ten percent or more of the business or of the corporation’s stock. 

   
Name Position Years with Co. % Ownership 

    

    

    

    

    

 
(6) Provide the firm’s resumes for the key personnel (for example Project Manager and Field 

Superintendent). 
 

(7) How many years has your organization been in business in California as a contractor under 
your present business name and license number? _____________Years 
 

(8) State your firm’s gross revenues for each of the last three calendar years. 
 
__________________  ___________________ _____________________ 
 

(9) Bonding capacity:  Provide documentation from your surety identifying the following: 
 
Name of bonding company/surety:  
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of surety agent, address, and telephone number: 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
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(10) If your firm was required to pay a premium of more than one per cent for a performance and 
payment bond on any project(s) on which your firm worked at any time during the last three 
calendar years, state the percentage that your firm was required to pay. You may provide an 
explanation for a percentage rate higher than one per cent, if you wish to do so.  

 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
(11) List all other sureties (name and full address) that have written bonds for your firm during 

the last five calendar years, including the dates during which each wrote the bonds: 
 

             
 
             

 
 

If answers to any of the following questions are “YES," please provide an attachment with 
detailed information. The time frame, unless otherwise stated, for all questions is a minimum 
of ten years: 

 
 Yes No

(12) Has your firm ever been denied bond coverage by a surety company, 
or has there ever been a period of time when your firm had no surety 
bond in place during a public construction project when one was 
required? 

 

  

(13) Has there been any warranty claims filed in the past seven years for 
work completed by your firm or partnership? 

 
  

(14) Has your contractor’s license been revoked?    
 

  

(15) Has a surety firm completed a contract on your behalf, or paid for 
completion because your firm was default terminated by the project 
owner? 

 

  

(16) At the time of submitting this pre-qualification form, is your firm 
ineligible to bid on or be awarded a public works contract, or 
perform as a subcontractor on a public works contract? 

  

   

   

(17) Has your firm or any of its owners or officers been convicted of a 
crime involving the awarding of a contract of a government 
construction project, or the bidding or performance of a government 

 
 

 
 
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 Yes No
contract? 

 
(18) Has your firm, or any firm with which any of your company’s 

owners, officers or partners was associated, been debarred, 
disqualified, removed or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or 
completing, any government agency or public works project for any 
reason? 

 

  

(19) Has your firm been assessed and paid liquidated damages after 
completion of a project under a construction contract with either a 
public or private owner?  

 

  

(20) Has your firm or any of its owners, officers, or partners ever been 
found liable in a civil suit or found guilty in a criminal action for 
making any false claim or material misrepresentation to any public 
agency or entity?   

 

  

(21) Has your firm or any of its owners, officers, or partners ever been 
convicted of a crime involving any federal, state, or local laws 
related to construction? 

 

  

(22) Have there been any changes in ownership of the firm? 
 

  

(23) Is the firm a subsidiary, parent, holding company or  
affiliate of another construction firm? 

  

(24) Are any corporate officers, partners, or owners connected to any 
other construction firms? 

 

  

(25) Was your firm in bankruptcy at any time during the last ten years or 
currently the debtor in a bankruptcy case? 

 

  

(26) Has your firm changed names or license number?   

(27) Has any owner, partner, or (for corporations) officer of your firm 
operated a construction firm under any other name? 

 
  

(28) Has any CSLB license held by your firm or its Responsible 
Managing Employee (RME) or Responsible Managing Officer 
(RMO) been suspended? 

 

 
 

 
 

(29) Has your firm been denied an award of a public works contract 
based on a finding by a public agency that your company was not a 
responsible bidder?   

  
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 Yes No
 
(30) Has any claim against your firm concerning your firm’s work on a 

construction project been filed? 
 

  

(31) Has your firm made any claim for additional compensation against a 
project owner concerning work on a project or for a contract or 
submitted request for equitable adjustment payment? 

 

  

(32) Has any surety company made any payments on your firm’s behalf 
as a result of a default, to satisfy any claims made against a 
performance or payment bond issued on your firm’s behalf, in 
connection with a construction project, either public or private? 

 

  

(33) Has any insurance carrier, for any form of insurance, refused to 
renew the insurance policy for your firm? 

 

  

(34) Has CAL OSHA cited and assessed penalties against your firm for 
any “serious,” “willful” or “repeat” violations of its safety or health 
regulations?   

 

  

(35) Has the federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration cited 
and assessed penalties against your firm? 

 

  

(36) Has the EPA, Air Quality Management District, any Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, or any regulatory agencies cited and assessed 
penalties against either your firm or the owner of a project on which 
your firm was the contractor? 

  

 
(37) Do you require documented safety meetings to be held for construction employees and field 

supervisors during the course of a project, and if so, how often?  
 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

(38) List your firm’s Experience Modification Rate (EMR) (California workers’ compensation 
insurance) for each of the past three premium years:  

 
 Current year:     
 
 Previous year:      
 
 Year prior to previous year:    
 
 If your EMR for any of these three years is or was 1.00 or higher, attach a letter of 

explanation. 



 

IEUA	Pre‐Qualification	Questionnaire		 	 	Page	12	
New	Water	Quality	Laboratory	
Project	No.	EN15008																		 																																															
 

 Yes No 

(39) Within the last ten years has there ever been a period when your firm had 
employees but was without workers’ compensation insurance or state-
approved self-insurance? 

 

 

(40) During the last ten years, has there been more than one occasion in which 
your firm was required to pay either back wages or penalties for your own 
firm’s failure to comply with: 

 
a. State’s prevailing wage laws? 

 
b. Federal Davis Bacon prevailing wages? 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(41) Provide the name, address and telephone number of the apprenticeship program (approved by 

the California Apprenticeship Council) from whom you intend to request the dispatch of 
apprentices to your company for use on any public work project for which you are awarded a 
contract by IEUA.  

 
        ____________________________________ 
 
        ___________________________________ 
  
(42) If your firm operates its own State-approved apprenticeship program:  

 
(a) Identify the craft or crafts in which your firm provided apprenticeship training in 

the past year.  
      _________
 _______________________________________ 

 
 (b)  State the year in which each such apprenticeship program was approved, and 

attach evidence of the most recent California Apprenticeship Council approval(s) 
of your apprenticeship program(s).   
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(c) State the number of individuals who were employed by your firm as apprentices 
at any time during the past three years in each apprenticeship and the number of 
persons who, during the past three years, completed apprenticeships in each craft 
while employed by your firm. 

 
         
 
         
 
         
 
  Yes No 

(43)     At any time during the past ten years, has your firm been found 
to have violated any provision of California apprenticeship 
laws or regulations, or the laws pertaining to use of 
apprentices on public works? 

 

  
 
 

 

(44)      Does your firm have any current stop notices filed?   
 
 
 

 

(45) Do your subcontractors have any stop notices filed against 
current open contracts you have with them? 

  
 
 
 

 
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LABORATORY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS WITHIN THE PAST SEVEN YEARS 
 

Contractor shall provide information about every laboratory project completed over the 
last seven years.  Names, references, and phone numbers must be current and verifiable.  

 

Use separate sheets of paper for each project and include all of the following information: 

 
Project Name:            
 

 Location:            
 

Owner:             
 
Owner Contact (name and current phone number):  
 
            

 
Architect or Engineer: ________________________________________     

 
Architect or Engineer Contact (name and current phone number): 
 
           ______ 

 
Construction Manager (name and current phone number): 
 
          ______ 

 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: 
 
          ______ 
 
          ______ 
 
Total Value of Construction (including change orders):      

 
Original Scheduled Completion Date:        

 
Time Extensions Granted (number of days):       
 

Actual Date of Completion:       ______
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CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS WITHIN THE PAST SEVEN YEARS 
 

Contractor shall provide information about all of the projects completed over the last 
seven years for general building or engineering projects.  Names, references, and phone 
numbers must be current and verifiable.  

 

Use separate sheets of paper for each project and include all of the following information: 

 
Project Name:            
 

 Location:            
 

Owner:             
 
Owner Contact (name and current phone number):  
 
            

 
Architect or Engineer:________________________________________     

 
Architect or Engineer Contact (name and current phone number): 
 
           ______ 

 
Construction Manager (name and current phone number): 
 
          ______ 

 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: 
 
          ______ 
 
          ______ 
 
Total Value of Construction (including change orders):      

 
Original Scheduled Completion Date:        

 
Time Extensions Granted (number of days):       
 
Actual Date of Completion:       
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* * * * * * * 
 
I, the undersigned, certify and declare that I have read all the foregoing answers to this 
prequalification questionnaire and know their contents.  The matters stated in the questionnaire 
answers are true of my own knowledge and belief, except as to those matters stated on information 
and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true.  I declare under penalty of perjury under 
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing is correct.  
       
 
Dated:  _________________   _________________________________ 
      (Name) 
 
 
 
 
 
* * * * * * * 
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Attachment A  
 

IEUA Request For Pre-Qualification Schedule 
 
 

Item Description Date 

1 Advertise RFP 12/3/2015 

2 Written Questions Due 12/23/2015 

3 Pre-Qualification Applications Due 1/11/2016 

4 Application Review Date 2/4/2016 

5 Notification Letter 2/9/2016 

6 Written Appeal Letter Due 2/16/2016 

7 Final Determination 2/22/2016 
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Attachment B 

 
IEUA Regional Water Quality Laboratory Project Agreement Requirements 

 
 
 
 
The IEUA Regional Water Quality Laboratory Project (Project) will be funded by a State Water 
Resources Control Board State Revolving Fund Loan (Agreement). The Agreement has regulatory 
requirements that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency is required to include in all contracts for work 
related to the performance of the Agreement. The consultants and contractors must assist IEUA in 
meeting the federal and state requirements that apply to the scope stated in their contracts. These 
requirements include, but are not limited to, the State Prevailing Wages, Federal Davis‐Bacon 
requirements, Federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), Audit, and Record Retention and 
Review, etc. If a sub is hired, the Agreement requirement language must be included in the sub’s 
contract in its entirety. The follow attachments provide more details about the specific requirements 
and must be included in all contracts for this Project: 
 
1. Article V ‐ Miscellaneous Provisions 
2. Exhibit E ‐ Federal Conditions & Cross‐Cutters 
3. Exhibit G ‐ Davis‐Bacon Labor Compliance Requirements 
4. DBE instructions/forms 
5. Signage on Construction Site 
6. Records 






































































